
CITY OF MAYER  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, JULY 23, 2018 

6:30 PM 

AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Public Comment (Please limit comments to 5 minutes)

5. Consent Agenda
A. Minutes

1. July 9, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes
2. July 9, 2018 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes

B. Claims

C. Reports
1. City Administrator
2. Fire Department
3. Sheriff’s Department
4. Public Works
5. City Engineer

D. 2019 Contracts/Agreements
1. 2019 Carver County Assessor’s Office Service Agreement

6. Public Hearing – 220 4th Street NE

7. Reports and Recommendations of City Departments, Consultants, Commissions and Committees
A. Administrative

1. Cleaning Contract – Minnesota Services
2. Tower Lease – American Tower

B. Planning Commission
1. Vinkemeier Concept Plan

8. City Council Reports

9. Other Business

1



 
10.  Upcoming Meetings & Events 

July 24, 2018 – EDA Meeting – Cancelled  
August 7, 2018 – Planning Commission Meeting 
August 13, 2018 – City Council Meeting  
August 14, 2018 – Park Commission Meeting  
 

11.  For Your Information  
July 10, 2018 Park Commission Meeting Minutes  
July 12, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

12. Adjournment  

2



MAYER CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – JULY 9, 2018  
Call Regular meeting to order at 6:34 p.m. by Mayor Dodge 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, Butterfield, McNeilly, and Stieve-McPadden  
ABSENT:   None 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Public Works Kuntz, and Deputy Clerk Gildemeister 
ALSO PRESENT:   Don Wachholz, Mike Wegner, Chad Heldt, Jennifer Mathews, Nate Vilmain, Steven 
Young 
 
The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member Boder with a second by Council Member Butterfield to approve the 
agenda with the addition of Resolution for Appointing Election Judges and Discussion on Heldt Property 
Violations. Motion Carried 5/0 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member McNeilly with a second by Council Member Stieve-McPadden to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion Carried 5/0.    

1. Approve the Minutes of the June 25, 2018 Regular Council Meeting. 
2. Approve Claims for the Month of July, 2018. Check numbers 21640 to 21659 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 

1. Tour De Tonka Presentation – Mr. Tim Litfin, representing the Tour De Tonka bike ride which will 
take place Saturday August 4, 2018, appeared before the Council highlighting the 2018 event with a 
power point presentation. Tour De Tonka continues to grow in number and this year they added a 
number of shorter routes. The 100 mile portion of this multi route ride goes through the City of Mayer. 
He thanked the City of Mayer for being a great partner in this event. He encouraged participation and 
stated that volunteers are still needed. Council returned his gratitude and appreciates the continued 
participation in the Tour De Tonka Event. Council directed Staff to add event to City electronic sign. 
 

2. Approval Resolution 7-9-18-19 Appointing Primary Election Judges – A MOTION was made by 
Council Member Stieve-McPadden and seconded by Council Member Butterfield approving Resolution 
7-9-18-19 Appointing Primary Election Judges. Motion Carried 5/0 

 
3. Discussion on Heldt Property Driveway Violations –The property owner at 220 4th Street NE, Chad 

Heldt, appeared before the Council to request a Public Hearing regarding City Code Driveway 
violations. Mr. Heldt was found out of compliance and in violation of the City Code Driveway 
Ordinance. Council agreed that more information is needed and directed Mr. Heldt to write a formal 
appeal and go through the Appeals Process. A MOTION was made by Mayor Dodge and seconded by 
Council Member McNeilly to table the discussion and allow Mr. Heldt to follow the Appeals Process 
and submit a formal Appeal for review by Council at a future Council Meeting. Motion carried 5/0 
 

4. Discussion on Public Works Full-Time Position – City Administrator McCallum stated the City has 
received ten applicants for the Public Works Full-Time Position. Ms. McCallum requested direction 

3



from Council an how to proceed due to a conflict of interest with current Personnel Committee Staff.    
A MOTION to allow Staff to narrow down the candidates to three and bring candidates to Council for 
final interviews on July 24, 2018 was made by Council Member Butterfield and seconded by Council 
Member McNeilly. Motion Carried 4/0 (Council Member Boder Abstained) 

 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 

• None 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

• Mayer Rising Community Festival needs volunteers. 
 

ADJOURN 
There being no further business, a MOTION was made by Council Member Stieve-McPadden and seconded by 
Council Member McNeilly to adjourn the meeting at 7:06 p.m.  Motion Carried 5/0 

 
 

                           _________________________________ 
                                  Mike Dodge, Mayor 

 
Attest: ______________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy City Clerk 

4



MAYER CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES – JULY 9, 2018 
 
Call Work Session to order at 7:07 p.m. by Mayor Dodge. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, Butterfield, McNeilly, and Stieve-McPadden  
ABSENT:   
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Public Works Kuntz, and Deputy Clerk Gildemeister  
ALSO PRESENT:   Nate Vilmain, Steven Young 
. 

 
1. Discussion on IT Services with TechStar: Nate Vilmain, TechStar Network Architect, talked to 

Council about the current IT Services provided by TechStar and addressed the shortfalls and 
future IT needs of the City. Council asked Staff to bring a proposal with details on how much 
was spent on IT over the past year to Council for review. 
 

2. Discussion on Budget Goals and Schedule: The City Administrator initiated discussion on 
2019 goals, priorities, and the schedule for the budget process. Staff has already begun early 
phases of reviewing the budget. Council agreed that they really liked the schedule like the one 
presented and would like to see a comparison of spending from 2018 to 2019. 
 

3. Discussion on Fire Department Building Assessment Information: Council reviewed the Fire 
Department Building Safety Walkthrough Report Conducted on June 4, 2018 by the League of 
Minnesota Cities. The League conducted a safety survey of the Fire Department station and 
operations to identify areas and job tasks where there are known or potential safety hazards. 
Mayor Dodge asked Fire Chief Maetzold to provide a cost analysis of implementing repairs and 
a list prioritizing safety concerns. Council directed Chief Maetzold to address the exhaust issue 
immediately. Council Member Butterfield requested copies of architectural drawing for the 
current Fire Station. Council directed Staff to bring discussion on Fire Station to a future budget 
meeting.  
 

4. Discussion on Tower Lease – City Council previously discussed the tower lease issue at the 
June 25, 2018 Work Session. The Lessee submitted a new offer to extend the term of the 
Amended Lease Council for review. Council agreed the new offer does not advantage the City 
and decided to do nothing. Council asked Staff to get more information and bring back for 
further discussion. 

 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED 
There being no further business, the work session was adjourned at 8:31 p.m. 

 
 

                           _______________________________ 
                                 Mike Dodge, Mayor 

Attest: ______________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy City Clerk 

5



6



7



8



9



10



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 
Public Works Position – We will be having interviews for the 4 finalists on August 24th starting at 6 p.m. 
The interviews will be 30 minutes each. It will give us hopefully enough time to interview and then have 
some discussion for each applicant.   
 
Crosswalk – Update –I am still working with the engineer now to determine logistics such as the true 
location and if this has to go out for bidding. 
 
Cleaning  Services – The contract for the City Hall/Community Center cleaning will be on the July 23, 
2018 meeting agenda. 
 
Jaguar Communications – I spoke with Jaguar Communications this week. They will be hosting a 
community event at the Community Center on Wednesday, August 8, 2018 from 3:00 p.m.  
 
Elections- As election season ramps up. Janell and I are making sure that training is completed by all 
election judges and that we are prepared from both the primary and general elections coming up.  
 
Administrative Study – I received an email from Liza at David Drowns this week stating that the survey 
results were in from the cities and that she was preparing the preliminary report of the results.  
  
Park Safety  Audits – Kyle and I sat down with a representative from Flagship to review the safety audit 
for the parks. They had really good things to say about our parks! There are some minor concerns that 
staff will address (sticker replacements, adding woods chips, etc.). 
 
Budget – I continue to review the budget for 2019. I am hopeful that we will have most or all of our 
Capital Improvement Plans available for review by the week of August 13, 2018. 
 
Sincerely,  
M aggie McCallum  

11



Date: July 12, 2018 
 
TO:  MAYER CITY COUNCIL/CONTRACTING TOWNSHIPS 
FROM:  MAYER FIRE DEPARTMENT, ROD MAETZOLD – FIRE CHIEF 
 
SUBJECT:  FIRE REPORT FOR MONTH ENDING – 06/30/18 

 
TOWNSHIP CALLS: 

 
DATE         TIME TWP  DESCRIPTION/ADDRESS    MAN HOURS 
06/03/18       0240 Watertown Gas Leak, 12900 62nd St      19 
 

 
CITY OF MAYER CALLS: 

 
DATE         TIME DESCRIPTION/ADDRESS      MAN HOURS 
06/13/18       1658 Medical, 121 Ash Ave N        9 
06/14/18       1908 Medical, 2346 Coldwater Crossing      16 
06/15/18       1220 Mutual Aid, Standby at Watertown Station     12 
06/15/18       2115 Medical, 419 Bluejay Ave #106       12 
06/17/18       0523 Medical, 419 Bluejay Ave #109       14 
06/23/18       1508 Structure Fire, 8190 Hwy 25          11 
06/27/18       0741 Medical, 520 Ash Ave S        9 
   
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAININGS/ACTIVITIES FOR MONTH ENDING 06/30/18 
06/04/18 Regular Meeting 
06/07/18 Officers Meeting at Watertown for Mutual Aid 
06/11/18 Training – House Burn 
06/21/18 Carver County Chiefs’ Meeting at Watertown 
06/26/18 Meeting with State Officials and Emily regarding upcoming State and National Memorial events for the 

LODD death of Officer Vollmer 
 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Mayor and Council Members  
From: Kyle Kuntz 
Re: Public Works Activities from June 20

th
 to July 19

th
 (2018)  

 
Roads 

 Muller and Son’s came to do road repairs 

 Mowed roadsides 

 Hauled sweepings to compost site 

 Started spraying weeds along curb lines 
 

Parks 

 Mowed and weed whipped parks as needed 

 Graded ball fields as needed 

 Started laying out skating rink in Old School House Park 
o Contacted contractors about excavating 

 Mowed meadow areas at the end of 4
th

 St NE and in Meadow Park 

 Met with Flagship about safety audits on playground equipment 

 Sprayed weeds along fence lines and infields 

 Cut up trees that blew over in Discovery Park and Old School House Park 

 Vacuumed/bagged grass clumps in Old School House Park 

 Attended park board meeting on 7/10/18 
 

Water Treatment Facility 

 Took water samples for Minnesota Department of Health 
o Took all MDH water samples to UPS store in Waconia to be shipped 

 Met with technician from JHF about air compressor issues 
o Had to order a new control panel 

 MDH came to inspect water plant and conduct water tests 
 

Wastewater Treatment Facility  

 Removed old fencing 

 Sprayed weeds along fence line and in-between buildings 

 Troubleshot issues with flow readings 

 Gathered information on collection system for MPCA wastewater permit application 

 Ran TSS & Settlebility tests 
 

Lift Stations & Collection System 

 Put together maps for jetting and televising  

 Overline and Son, Inc came to jet and televise sanitary sewer lines 
 

Miscellaneous  

 Worked on cleaning/organizing public works building in between other public works tasks 

 Pushed up compost and brush piles at compost site 

 Unplugged overflow structure (daily) in Coldwater Crossing development 

 Trimmed bushes by Community Center 

 Cleaned City Hall/ Community Center 

 Assisted with Mayer Rising Community Festival 
o Helped with set up and take down 

 Swept city hall parking lot 

 Worked on snow plowing proposal 

 Attended City Council meeting on 6/25/18 

41



 Attended City Council meeting on 7/9/18 
 

Equipment  

 Worked on spraying equipment 

 Started installing/setting up new transfer fuel tank in the back of the F-150 

 Sharpened blades and greased chopper 

 Greased, sharpened blades, and changed oil in mower 
o Removed deck baffles for bagging system 

 

42



 

H:\MAYR\C13115477\1_Corres\Project Updates\Project Update 7-16-18.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: July 16, 2018 

To: Mayer City Council 

From: David Martini 

Subject: Projects in Progress 

 

For your convenience, the following is a summary of the projects Bolton & Menk has worked on during 

the billing period from May 19th and June 15th, 2018: 

 

Miscellaneous Engineering 

Miscellaneous engineering included attendance at the City Council Meetings on June 11th, along with the 

following: 

 

 Conservation Easement Documents for the Wetland Restoration Project. 

 Reviewing Mn/DOT comments regarding pedestrian light style and placement 

 Preparation of sewer lining plans and specifications 

 Reviewing backyard drainage issues 

 Reviewing pond maintenance issues 

  

7 hours of time was provided at the City’s reduced hourly rate and Council Meetings were attended at No 

Charge, which resulted in a savings to the City of $888. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Support 

During the billing period, work continued on preparation of the draft plans for Storm Water, Sanitary 

Sewer, Water Supply, and Transportation.  Bolton & Menk also worked on preparation of the Land Use 

section of the plan at the request of the City Administrator and MDG. 

 

2018 Street Planning 

During the billing period, street review and mapping continued. 

 

Cold Water Crossing 7th Addition (Pass Thru) 

During the billing period, time was spent on punch list coordination and mapping updates.  Site 

maintenance issues have been identified and communicated to the Developer. 

 

Hidden Creek 7th Addition (Pass Thru) 

During the billing period, time was spent on punch list coordination and follow up. 

 

TH 25 Coordination 

During the billing period, I attended the public open house for the proposed 2020 project. 

 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



Memorandum 
 
Item: Cleaning Contract – Minnesota Services   
 
Meeting Date:  July 23, 2018   
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator  
 
Timeline Details: 
The City was notified by its cleaning contractor that they would be done with services on May 31, 2018.  
 
Staff solicited proposals from other cleaning contractors using our current level of service schedule. All 
common areas, hallways, restrooms would be cleaner 2 days per week. During the summer, additional 
spot cleaning would be cleaned 5 days per week. The contractor would also clean after scheduled 
community center events. All contractors would provide their own cleaning supplies and equipment, 
with the option to use the City’s floor scrubber. The City would continue to supply consumables such as 
toilet paper, hand towels, etc.  
 
At the June 25, 2018 the City Council asked that a contract between the City of Mayer and the lowest 
bidder be brought to them for review and approval.  
 
Additional Information: 
Minnesota Services Proposal  
 

50



1

The following is a proposal presented

to:

City of Mayer, MN

MN Services, Inc.
11301 West 47th Street
Minnetonka, MN 55343
Office:  952-988-8567
Cell:      952-217-9360

51



1

.
FACTS

 Over 49 years of cleaning experience, serving the Twin 

Cities Area since 1969

 Over 11 million square feet cleaned daily

 Top 10 ranking in customer service among all cleaning 

companies

 Better Business Bureau | A+ Rating  

 Building Service Contractors Association International

 Minnesota Multi Housing Association

 Minnesota Association of Church Facility Managers

 St. Paul Area Chamber of Commerce

 Greater St. Paul Building Owners and Managers Association

 International Facility Management Association

52



1

.
ADVANTAGES

 Large Enough – MN Services is large enough to tackle any

janitorial issue

 Small Enough – We provide individual attention that

caters to your specific needs

 Pricing Transparency – Our clients take part in the pricing

process so there are no surprises

 Worker Selection & Training

 We recruit workers in the area near your facility.

 New facilities cleaned with management personnel for

up to two weeks

 A manager checks each new employee’s work until they

are well–trained

 Facilities are inspected at a minimum of two times per

week

 Adhere to a plan that offers the least disruption to your

business & its operations

53



1

.QUALITY CONTROL

Our management philosophy is based on the conviction that
it's our job to manage the quality of your facilities cleaning,
not yours. Most companies take a passive approach to
managing, and assume that if they don't hear from you
everything is fine. By contrast, we do weekly inspections while
crews are onsite to make sure that any problems are taken
care of immediately. In addition, we will provide you with
inspection reports upon request.

Upon request we will arrange for joint tours of your facility
with you or a designated representative on a scheduled basis.

MN Services will design a supervisory program detailed to
your building maintenance requirements.

Each building will have one person responsible for daily
communications with the customer’s representative. They will
handle any minor issues that arise and provide oversight of
day-to-day cleaning needs and arrangements.

54



1

.GENERAL PROVISIONS

Frequency: Maintenance will be performed 2 times per week.
The exact hours are to be set by MN Services and the client as
dictated by the needs of the contract. Cleaning will be
performed after normal business hours.

Security: Your security procedures will be strictly adhered to
by MN Services and its management. All employees will be
required to have identification badges and wear our company-
issued shirt if the contract requires it.

Supplies: All supplies such as plastic bags, liners, toilet tissue,
hand towels, hand soap, sanitary napkins, etc. are to be
supplied by the customer. All cleaning supplies such as
disinfectants, window cleaners, etc. will be supplied at their
point of use by MN Services.

55



1

.GENERAL PROVISIONS (Continued)

Insurance: MN Services has in force the following policies:
Public Liability, Property Damage, Workers Compensation and
Blanket Fidelity Bond. Certificates will be mailed to you upon
request directly from our insurance provider.

Adjustments: The price set forth in this proposal is based on
the necessary labor, supplies, equipment and supervision
necessary to maintain your facility properly as set forth by the
areas serviced and the frequency of the work. In the event of
any major changes in such conditions, the contract may be
either increased or decreased accordingly with thirty (30) days
written notification. These adjustments shall be by mutual
agreement.

Terms: Should this proposal be accepted, it will form the basis
of the agreement and will continue in effect from year to year,
except that it may be modified from time to time as set forth
above. The contract may be terminated in its entirety by either
party at any time by giving notice in writing of their desire to
do so at least thirty (30) days prior to the selected date of
termination. A longer period may be effected should you
require this.

56



1

.
PERSONNEL

SELECTION: Aside from proper management we feel the single
most important part in any building maintenance program is the
personnel who are actually doing the cleaning. We hire those who
are not only visually presentable, but also capable of being
responsible for their actions within a client’s building. All persons
who we consider for employment must have both business and
personal references that we can check.

TRAINING: A person’s training always begins by working with an
experienced worker or manager. For instance, in a new facility we
clean the building exclusively with management personnel for a
period of up to two weeks, depending on the individual
circumstances. The manager will then continue to check the
employee’s work until the time the manager feels comfortable that
the employee is well trained. After this time, we will continue
regular, periodic inspections.

57



1

.
SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE 

Two Times Per Week

Entrance and Reception Area 
 Spot clean both sides of entrance door glass & adjoining interior glass
 Sweep or dust mop hard surfaced floors
 Wet mop hard surfaced floors
 Vacuum carpeted areas and entry runners
 Weekly dust horizontal surfaces, including reception desk and 

window ledges
 Empty trash & recycling receptacles and replace liners as needed
 Spot clean switch plates, walls & doors area as needed

Offices, Conference Rooms, Council Chambers, Multi-Use Rooms & Hallways
 Vacuum carpeted areas and runners
 Sweep or dust mop hard surfaced floors
 Wet or damp mop hard surfaced floors
 Weekly dust reachable horizontal surfaces.  We will feather dust 

around papers and personal items on desks and ledges
 Wipe down conference room tables and arrange furniture neatly
 Empty trash & recycling receptacles and replace liners as needed.  

Clean receptacles and adjacent wall area as needed
 Spot clean reachable interior window glass as needed
 Spot clean switch plates, walls & doors area as needed
 Clean and disinfect drinking fountains

Gymnasium & Kitchen
 Empty trash & recycling receptacles and replace liners as needed
 Dust mop gym floor each day (wet or damp mop as needed)
 Sweep & wet mop kitchen floor

58



1

.
SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE 

Two Times Per Week

Break Room/Coffee Service Area
 Empty trash & recycling receptacles and replace liners.  Wipe down 

trash receptacles and adjacent wall area as needed
 Clean and disinfect sinks, chrome fittings, tables and counter tops
 Weekly dust horizontal surfaces
 Vacuum carpeted areas 
 Sweep and wet mop hard surfaced floors with detergent
 Clean microwaves inside and out
 Wipe down backsplash, cabinet facings and handles as needed
 Clean interior of fridge the last Friday of each month

Lavatory Maintenance 
 Empty trash receptacles and replace liners
 Clean & disinfect waste receptacles as needed
 Clean & disinfect counter tops, sinks and chrome fittings
 Clean & disinfect door handles, push plates and switch plates
 Clean and disinfect all toilets, seats and urinals
 Clean walls & partitions around sinks, towel cabinets, partitions, 

bowls and urinals
 Clean & polish mirrors and frames
 Clean and refill all non-vending dispensers
 Sweep & wet mop all lavatory floors with detergent and disinfectant
 Clean and sanitize drinking fountains, and wipe down adjacent wall 

area as needed
 Weekly pour water down floor drains to keep traps from drying out

59



1

.
SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE

SUMMER DAY CARE – 3 Days Per Week (3 to 3.5 Months)
 Clean 2 restrooms 
 Sweep & Wet Mop Kitchen floor and empty trash
 Sweep & Wet Mop Day Care Area floors and empty trash
 Walk through hallways to pick up or spot clean as needed

Monthly

 Dust reachable high ledges, vents, base boards, moldings, picture
frames and corners to keep from dust and cobwebs

 Edge vacuum all carpeted areas

Optional Services Provided At Your Request

 Carpet Shampooing - $0.20 per square foot
 Stripping and waxing of tile floors - $0.60 per square foot
 Window Washing bid per job
 Extra cleaning upon request, such as disinfecting phones, cleaning

interior glass from top to bottom, dusting window blinds, etc. will
be billed at the hourly rate of $24.90

60



1

.
BUILDING SERVICE AGREEMENT
MN Services hereby agrees to perform the contract cleaning services as set forth in a good and
workmanlike manner.

MN Services further agrees to furnish all labor and materials necessary to perform the services
set forth in the specifications, except the furnishing of lavatory supplies such as hand soap,
towels, toilet tissue, sanitary napkins or deodorants, unless items of this type are specifically
included in the aforementioned specifications.

MN Services represents that its employees are covered by public liability insurance, property
damage insurance, workers compensation insurance and a fidelity bond. Insurance certificates
will be provided upon request.

The terms of this agreement shall remain in force and effect subject to the right of termination by
either party with a thirty (30) day written notice from the first of any month. The 30-day period
shall run from the time the terminating party mails a termination notice to coincide from the last
day of any given month.

MN Services agrees to the services set forth in the specifications, at the times and for the
consideration as set forth below.

The Customer agrees not to hire any of MN Services, Inc. personnel to work for them in any
capacity for a period of one year after termination of this contract, unless written approval is
given by MN Services.

Services to be performed as specified in the Schedule of Maintenance that accompanies this 
agreement.  Services to commence at Client’s request.

General Cleaning (2 days/week):  $561.17 Per Month

Summer Day Care (5 days/week):  $673.40 Per Month

Dated this 18th day of May 2018

By:____________________________________
MN Services, Inc.

By:____________________________________
City of Mayer, MN

MN Services, Inc.
11301 West 47th Street
Minnetonka, MN 55343
952-988-8567
952-217-9360

61



1

1

.
1

Letters of Recommendation
Existing Customers

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



Memorandum 
 
Item: Tower Income  
 
Meeting Date:  July 23, 2018   
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator  
 
Details: 
The original lease agreement was signed in 2000 between the City of Mayer and Verizon Wireless for 
the location at 413 Bluejay Avenue.  
 
Verizon agreed to pay $6,600 for the initial year (2000), “which shall be increased each year on January 
1st by five percent (5%).  
 
An amendment to the original lease agreement was made in 2008. They asked for asked for additional 
land coverage that would commence on January 1, 2009. Verizon agreed to add $6,000 per year in rent 
with an increase of three percent (3%) each year. In addition, subtenant rent would be divided between 
the landlord (the City) and Verizon at a rate of 25% and 75%.  
 
AT&T – $597.87/month     = $7,174.44 
T-Mobile - $581.07/month   = $6,972.84 
American Tower (per Verizon) - $20,551.75  =$20,551.75 
Current Total     =$34,699.03/year 
 
The most current amended offer would be a signing bonus of $35,000 (from $20,000) to extend the 
lease for 20 years. It would be about $1,750.00 extra per year for the lease. 
 
Attachments:  
Additional City Attorney memo from the July 9, 2018 City Council meeting.     

79



WORK SESSION STAFF REPORT 
 

Work Session Item No.4 
 
Date:  July 9, 2018 
 
To:  City Council 
 
From:  Timothy A. Sullivan, Joseph J. Langel 
 
Re:  Tower Lease—Amended Offer of 20-year Lease Extension 
 
Background 
 
The City Council previously discussed the tower lease issue at the June 25, 2018 work 
session.  By way of background, the proposal would have extended the lease by six 
additional 5-year terms (a total of 30 years), and exchange for this lease extension, the 
City would receive a one-time signing bonus of $20,000.  At that time, the City Council 
determined that it was not interested in the proposal to extend the lease under the terms 
presented.  Discussion focused on the facts that the current lease term does not expire 
until 2034, and that the offered signing bonus only translated to approximately $55 per 
month of the sought 30-year lease extension. 
 
Amended Offer to Extend Term of Amended Lease 
 
Per the instructions of the City Council, the City Attorney informed the representative of 
the tenant that the City was not interested in extending the lease under the proposed 
terms.  A few days later, the City Attorney was contacted regarding a modified lease 
extension proposal.   
 
The City Attorney requested that the offer be tendered in writing, and received a letter 
dated July 1, 2018, containing the following proposal: 1) extending the term of the 
amended lease four additional 5-year terms (a total of 20 years); and 2) a signing bonus 
of $35,000.  This amended proposal shortens the lease extension from 30 to 20 years, and 
increases the signing bonus from $20,000 to $35,000. 
 
Options Available to the City 
 

1. Accept the offered amended lease extension. 
 

2. Do nothing. 
 

3. Negotiate. 

80



Staff Analysis 
 
The signing bonus contained in the amended offer translates to approximately $145 per 
month of the sought extension, as compared to $55 per month in the original offer.  
Viewed this way, the amended offer is substantially better and will bind the city for ten 
fewer years than the original offer. 
 
Again, there does not appear to be any pressing or immediate need to modify the terms of 
the Amended Lease, which does not expire until the end of 2034 (16 ½ years from now).  
If the City does nothing, it will likely continue to collect rent under the terms of the 
Amended Lease for at least 16 ½ more years.   
 
However, the terms of the amended offer are far more favorable to the City than the 
original offer.  The longer lease term could also make the tower more marketable to sub-
tenants, which is the reason stated by the tenant for seeking an extension.  Additional 
sub-tenants and/or higher rents would result in additional rent income for the City. 
 
Attempting to negotiate further could result in improved terms, however there is no way 
to know whether that will happen or whether this is the best offer the City will receive at 
this time.  The City Attorney advises moving forward with the amended offer, unless the 
City Council does not wish to bind the property for up to another 20 years.   
 
Council Direction 
 
None required; discussion only.  If the City Council recommends moving forward, an 
agreement will be drafted and presented for consideration at a future City Council 
meeting. 
 
 
 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



A A P

MOSS & BARNETT/7/I/08

AMENI)MENT NO. | 

this /~’I’I]~AMENDMF~NTday o fAz@(,c~4~jtt-NO" 1 TO Sllm

Minnesota municipal cof_~ration~"LANDI
Verizon Wireless ("TENANT"), with its 
Stop 4AWl00, Basking Ridge, New Jersey
Recitals below:

R:

/~.gre~mcilt

shown on Exhibit A attached to tile Agreemc

B. LANDLORD and TENANT
additional ground space for TENANT to rep
a 190 foot monopole type tower, equipment
annual increase in the rent payable to LA[’
ground space; (iii) further extend the term 
(iv) delete the provision that l~ermits the 
Subleasing Co-Location section of the agn
Agreement.

AGI

¯ .v ..7 i ,,l~l~lt~-i xJl-.tj~ tL1 ~.~./ltOlux~tt~tu

mutual covenants and conditions below, ant
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowl

I. GROUND SPACE. The Ag
space of the Leased Premiges to a 50 by 70
comnmnications fhcility as described and s
and Exhibit B of the Agreement are hereby d

2. INCREASED RENT. As
commencing on Jannary 1, 2009, TENANq
Dollars ($6,000.00) per annum in rent. Paraf~
the annual rent shall increase by three percml

LEASL AGREEMENT

fE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made
_, by and between the City of Mayer, a

nnd ",l’orl-.-cm \~l’irolc~ce (\TA\XI~ I 1 (-" A/~,In

, with reference to the facts set forth in th~

LS

r predecessors in interest, are parties to a Sit~
lent"), whereby LANDLORD has leased 
Lhe Agreement) to TENANT as substantiall2

z to amend the Agreement to (i) provid~
existing tower and equipment cabincts witl

" and accessory structures; (it) provide for 
[~13 under the Agreement for the additiona
greement once the existing term has expired
I to terminate the agreement; (v) amend th~

L~NT

he lacts contained in the Recitals above, the
good and valuable consideration, the receipt
the parties agree as lbllows:

tt is hereby amended to increase [he ground
trcel of ground for construction of a wireless
,n the attached Exhibit A-I. Paragraph 5(c)
in their entirety.

leratmn lor the additional ground space
pay an additional Six Thousand and No/10
ia) of the Agreement is hereby revised so th~
per )’ear over the previous year’s rent.

Ametldmenl No I to Site Lease Agreement

100



amended to provide tor live (5) additional 
expiration of the Initial Term on December 3

4. LEASE TERMINATION. P
hereby deleted in their entirety.

5. NOTICE. LESSEE’S notice
replaced with the following:

Verizon Wireless (VAW) LL(
d/b/a Verizon Wireless
180 Washington Valley Road
13edminster, New Jersey 0792
Attention: Network Real Esla

,I J i ,i f

snan oe awmea oetween Lanmora ano I enant

Twenty-five percent (25%) t 
TENANT. Any Subtenant s
amounts directly to the LANDI
responsible to the LANDLOI
Subtenanl to the LANDLORI
LANDLORD ill the event of fi
previous, both TENANT and

LANDLORD in the event TI
consideration of its utilization
event TENANT sublets the pre

~. . i i i

aulllty iv) i.l&k, ul% Ul.ll%l 3 I,~lJllllll

Notwithstanding any other pl’c
required to obtain any appro,
premises or part lhereof for at
detennine whether it will subk
any specific Subtenant. The "
LANDLORD for failure to s
potential Subtenant(s). In the
Parties agree that they will exe
form to the one provided in E.’
order to confiml tbe direct
LANDLOI),D.

,e ttve (5) year Renewal lerms lollowmg the
P.

~hs l l(a)(iv) & l l(c) of the Agreement 

in Paragraph 19 of the Agreement is hereby

Paragraph 16 of the Agl’eement is revised s(
rant, any rental actually paid by the Subtenan
following manner:

DLORD and seventy-five percent (75%) 
: instructed Io pay the lbregoing percentag~
and the TENANT. The TENAN’I" shall not b,
’ the collection or payment of rents by the
tim "I’ENANT shall have no liability to th~
)f payment by Subtenant. Notwithstanding th~
mt shall have no obli~,ation of navmen! to lh~

t

)tenanl’s facility at another location or in the
in lieu ofmonetao, consideration, for a present
: TENANT and the Subtenant shall have the
ms facilities.

of this Agreement, the TENANT shall not be
n the LANDI.ORD lbr the subletting of the
)n. The TENANT shall have the sole right to
~ace at the premises or whether it will sublet to
IT shall have no liability of any nature In Ihe
11 or any oart of the nremises to anv or all

"hree Party Agreement, substantially similar i
-1 attached hereto and made a part hereof, i
ent obligation from the Subtenant. to th

Amendment No. I to Silo Lease Agreement

101



this Amendment, the parties agree that all o
full force and effect and remain unmodified,
and conditions of the Agreement and agree
of a conflict between any term or provision
and provisions of this Amendment shall cor
Amendment, all initially capitalized terms v,
in the Agreemenl. All captions are for ret
construction or interpretation of this Amen&

IN WITNESS WI:IEREOF, LANDL(
be executed by each party’s duly authorized r

LANDLORD:

CI [VIlII|I~II.¢~I II|UI|I~

By:
Name: gS"x ~ ,,-
Its: Mayor

Date: ~ - ~ Z. ~ t}’~

lls: City Clerk

’)ate: ~//.,Z---/~//

Acknowledgm

The remainder qf thL!

~rms and conditions of the Agreement are in
e parties hereby ratify and reaffirm the terms
mn and comply with the same. In the evenl
Agreement and this Amendment, the terms

n addition, except as otherwise stated in this
: the same respective defined meaning stated
purposes only and shall not be used in the

~d TENANT have caused this Amendinent t.
~tative effective as of the date written below.

ENANT:

zrizon Wireless (VAW) LLC
b/a Verizon ~reless

;: Midwest/~rea Vice President-Network

following page

nlentionally l@ blank

Amendmenl No. ] Io Site Lease ARreenlellt

102



STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) SS.

COUNTY OF ~/f~,~..~ "~ )

/,,. This iBstmlnent v, las aeknqw_ledge
J/~14/i3j/a~,d /.--/)t.5 fY :d

of’Mayd, a Mi.neso2a m ni¢ipai ;or

(Seal, if any)

TENANT ACI

STATE OF ILUNOIS )
)ss.

COUNTY OF COOK )

On this <Q~’4~-day ot: £~_~/
Notary Public in and for the State of [llifiois,
Beth Ann Drohan, to me known to be t le
Wireless (VAW) LLC d/b/a Verizon Wirel
acknowledged said instrument to be the Ire

bt~ttcu Ul~.t bite lb uuutorlzeu to execute tne sa

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have he
day and year first above written.

~  jtjor
P,~omry
My app

~e ,Eel_on &/..OJ.~R-~ /.2-., 200~,, by
, th~a.v~or an~ty Clerk, respect,vely, ol

:1". on behalf of the corporation.

e oF~rson Taking Aclomwle4~ment/~ "
///} ,;7

.

v

’ank

4um~~-

., .... l

200~, before me, the undersigned,
"lmn’iiqqiC~I3F-cl nn~] ~,/f£3l’n norennMIw nnnonr,c,:

mt executed the lbregoing instrument, and
voluntary act and deed of Verizon Wireless
md purposes therein mentioned, and on oatll
ument.

set my hand and affixed my official seat the

qame:

in and fo~ ~ S-taLe of Illinois
nt expires:

I~ I.+,xr+2;,-I+ IATONYA N ELLISk:_tl+lo*~ CO ’’ "~.,~ ~ss,o,-4 ExmEs o2/oa/og~j

Amendment No. I Io Site Lease Agreement

103



Sketch of additional ground space)

~:/I kD~ ii G

I.. -~ ~." m ~ ~i~ j--~

- , i~ o

I .........

I
I.

I

\ L._ ....

q

l:’age 1 ,if i

£

jl

¯ X__ ~,~ ,~,

l

MING MAYER

104



(Form of Three Party Agreement)

THREE PAl

This Agreenrent made this __ ,

., d/b/a Vc
180 Washington Valley Road, Bedminster, 1’

, with a princit
hereinafter called "Subtenant".

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant en

WI-IISKI~Ab, lenant and Subtenant
Agreement "Sublease" with respect to part of t

WHEREAS, Landlord, Tenant and St
rights and obligations with respect to subleasin

NOW, THERIT.FORE, ill consideratio
hereby, Landlord, Tenant and Subtenant agree

I. Lmldlord hereby confirms the
Tenant’s subleasing o1’ part of the Premises to t

pmo t~y bubtenant shall be divided between L;
to Landlord and % to Tenant. The
directly to the Landlord and the Tenant in a~
forth in the Sublease. The Tenant shall prc
Sublease and amendments thereto that relat~
payment. The payment from the Subtenant
provisions of the Sublease and the payment fr~
address specified above, unless the Landlor~
payee upon thirty (30) days written notice. 
Landlord of any rental amount as set lbrth he
of such non-payment at the address set lbrth a
validly given if sent by certified mail, return re

Page 1 of 3

3RIEEMENT

, 20 , by, and between
, with their mailing address located at

ereinat’ter called the "1 .andlnrct""

sey 07921, hereinafter called the "’l’enant" an,
iling address of

:to a Lease Agreement dated
;pect to a x parcel of lan,
after referred to as "Prenaises";

)r arc considering entering into a Snbleas
nises; and

~t desire to confirm and specil~, certain of th,
: Premises.

e premises and intending to be legally boun<
"ollowing:

It LII~ I ~[I~IILL Lkl ~LlUll..Sd~l.,~ +IIIU I,~UIINtSIL[b tl.) tilt2

tenant.

the Premises to Subtenant, any rental actually
and Tenant in the following manner: %
nt shall pay the loregoiag percentage amounts
ce with the time schedule for payment as set
tile Landlord a copy o1’ that portion of any

S’ rental paid thereunder and the method for
: made to the Tenant in accordance with the
Subtenant shall be made to the Landlord at the

A e~ i . o I ¯ , ,

~lit ,.11,~ kJlaUt~,ll~tll I. I~t£1~ t~*l lll(~lk~.~, IJO. VIII~.~IIL LtJ LII

e Landlord may give Subtenant written notic
qotice must be in writing and shall be deeme
quested or by commercial carrier, provided

105



(Form of Three Part), Agreement)

the carrier’s regular business is delivery servi
the addressee by the end of the next business
shall be deemed received by the Subtenant on,
forth in the preceding sentence and three da
receipt by the Subtenant, whichever is earlier¯
thirty (30) days ill which to cure any non-payi
payment within the time period set forth,.,
Sublease, in which event either the Landlord,
enforce any and all remedies against the S
limited to termination of the Sublease. Tenal7
Subtenant fails to lnakc payment to the Land

orcaCll Ol LUe ,3uoi

3. The Tenant shall have the sole
the Subtenant. The Tenant shall have no liabi
any and or all of the Premises to the Subtenant

4. The terms "Sublease", "sublet"
to any situation by which the Subtenant come
lbnnal sublease, license or other agreement.

5. Except as modified herein, all
shall remain in full force and effect. In the e
Agreement and the Lease or Sublease, the terrr

Signatures

Remainder of pa,

Page 2 nf3

provided further that it guarantees delivery to
swing carrier’s receipt from sender. The notice
"ter it is delivered to a commercial carrier as set
¯ sent by certified mail or upon actual signed
reetqnt nfgnoh notice Ihr~ Rnhlonnnl qhnll hnvo

n-payment shall be deemed a breach of th,
ption, or tile Tenant, at its option, may seek tq
it respecting the Sublease, including but n~
ave no responsibility or liability to Landlord i
set tbrth herein or in the event tile Sublease i
t-payment by the Subtenant to the Landlord o
nent shall not affect or negate in any way th,

~ determine whether it will sublet any space u
any nature to the Landlord for lhilul-e to suble

cnant" and any other silnilar terms shall applI
tile Premises lbr co-location, whether it be b’.

:un~ anu conumun~ uJ mc ~.ca3c anti buolcasc
f any contradictions between the terms of this
is Agreement shall prevail

:)wing page

’tionally left blank

106



(Form of Three Party Agreement)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned h
below.

I
T
1

I

Page 3 of 3

their hands and seals the date and year written

LORD:

~T:

1 Wireless (VAW) LLC
erizon Wireless

107



Page 1 

Mayer City Council 
Staff Report 

      July 16, 2018 
Vinkemeier Concept Plan 

 
APPLICATION DATA 
 
Meeting Date:    July 23, 2018 
 
Owner:   Joel Vinkemeier 
 
Applicant:  Francis Condon 
 
Address: 14120 County Road 30 
 
Location: Located east of the Shimmcor Industrial Park in Waconia Township north of County 

Road 30 
 
Parcel Id Number: 09.00618.00  
 
Legal Description: The East half (E1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of section 6, Township 116, 

Range 25, Carver County, MN. 
   
BACKGROUND DATA 
 
Action  
Requested: Review and discussion of a concept plan for approximately 80 acres located in Waconia 

Township directly east of the city limits adjacent to the Shimmcor Industrial Park and north 
of County Road 30. 

 
Background: The property itself fronts county Road 30 on the south with open space and farmland on the 

south side of the roadway, the Shimmcor Industrial Park to the west (which is zoned C/I 
Commercial/Industrial District), farmland to the east and the regional trail abuts the north 
boundary with single family residential being located on the north side of the trail. 

 
This property is approximately 80 acres and is guided for future industrial on the current 
future land use map that was approved as part of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan update. 
Since that time the City has been working on updating the comprehensive plan for the 2040 
update and the initial proposal was to continue to guide this property for industrial 
development.  
 
At this time the applicant has submitted the concept plan for review, since the concept 
proposes low density single family detached dwelling units on the north half of the property 
and industrial on the south side of the property. Two different types of residential units are 
proposed. The first product type is 97 villa home sites that have 55 foot wide lots. The 
second type is 26 detached townhome lots that are 45 feet wide. Both products would have 
associations that maintain items like mowing, snow removal, etc. The details for items can 
be discussed at a latter date. Due to the fact that these units do not meet the minimum lot 
sizes of the R-1 Low Density Residential District or the R-2 Medium Density Residential 
District, a planned unit development (PUD) would be required along with a preliminary and 
final plat. 
 
The planning commission at their July 12, 2018 meeting approved a motion 6-0 to support 
the proposed uses, per the changes suggested by staff, in the concept plan and to re-guide 
the north part of the property to low density single family. As part of this review the draft 
future land use plan would also change he industrial designation to the east of the north 
part of this property to a combination of low, medium and high density residential. 

 

108



Page 2 

Annexation: The property is currently located in Waconia Township and would need to be annexed to 
the City. The property is located in the orderly annexation areas and therefore the 
annexation process and requirements are spelled out in the agreement. To begin 
processing the annexation a petition of 100% of the landowners of the property proposed to 
be annexed is required. Per the zoning ordinance, all land annexed to the City shall be 
classified automatically upon annexation as being A, Agriculture District. The specific 
zoning would then be reassigned at the time of plat approval based on the final plan and 
PUD.  

 
Density: The entire site, consists of 78.8 acres, excluding the right of way for County Road 30. There 

is a existing wetlands easement located in the northwestern part of the property that is 6.8 
acres in size reducing the net site area to 72.0 acres. Of that 72 acres, 37 acres are 
proposed as residential and 35 acres are proposed as industrial. There are a total of 123 
proposed lots meaning the gross density of the residential area is 3.32 units per acre and if 
you exclude the 2.3 acres of additional ponding and open space you end up with a net 
density of  3.54 units per acre. 

 
 Under the current density requirements for the R-1 district, three units an acre is the 

maximum, meaning for this density to happen the property would have to be zoned R-2 with 
a PUD overlay. Under the proposed comp plan the density requirements are proposed to be 
slightly adjusted so that low density would be up to four units per acre instead of three units 
per acre. 

 
Comments  
Received:  No comments have been received at the time of this memo.   
 
Street Access: This site is proposing access to County Road 30 at the southeast edge of the property. Any 

access to county Road 30 would need to be review by Carver County and an access permit 
would be needed and be the responsibility of the developer. Items such as turn lanes, 
bypass lanes and lighting may be required by the county. 

 
Park Dedication: Parkland dedication will be required with this plat and would be determined in more detail 

with the concept plan and preliminary plat review. It is thought that it is possible that some 
sort of greenway corridor could be utilized through the PUD to give access to the regional 
trail to the north and to a proposed future trail along the north/south minor collector road 
being proposed with this development.  

 
Landscaping: Under a PUD, additional landscaping could be required to help buffer the residential uses 

from the industrial uses and tree plantings could be required along any potential greenway 
corridor. 

 
Sidewalks/Trails: It is proposed that all local through streets will be required to have concrete sidewalk on one 

side of the street and that the proposed minor collector street accessing County Road 30 
would have a bituminous trail on one side and a concrete sidewalk on the other side. There 
is also a potential to try to link this trail through the development to the north to connect to 
the regional trail. This will need to be discussed further but it could serve as a greenway 
buffer between industrial property and single family lots.  

 
Utilities: There is sanitary sewer and water service in the Shimmcor Industrial Park on Shimmcor 

Street. Water service could be served by these facilities since there a water tower site 
adjacent to this property. Sanitary sewer service however, is proposed to come from the 
north across the regional trail. At this time a trunk sewer line is located in 62nd Street just 
south of the Fieldstone development approximately a half mile away. It would have to be 
determined if temporary sewer service could be provided from the Shimmcor development, 
possibly through a temporary lift station, or if the capacity is full in the downstream lines and 
this property will be required to wait for a sewer line from the north. 

 
Wetlands: No wetland delineation has been completed at this time but there is a wetland easement 

109



Page 3 

over a wetland on the upper west side of the property. This area is proposed to be 
preserved. It is also possible as part of the PUD to look at a option to extend a trail along 
this area connecting the regional trail with a future trail along the north/south minor collector 
street on the east side of the property. If the applicant proceeds forward with a preliminary 
plat, a wetland delineation will be required for the entire property. 

 
Lot Frontage: There are two lots on the very northern edge of the property that do not appear to meet the 

lot frontage requirements on a public street. All lots will be required to have the minimum 
frontage requirements on a public street so the lots in this area will need to be adjusted. 

 
City Engineer  
Review: The City Engineer has stated that after review of the concept plan from a sewer 

perspective, this area will ultimately be served by gravity sewer to the north through other 
new development and Fieldstone.  However, it did appear that the existing system has 
capacity to route the flow through either the West Ridge Development or Shimmcor with the 
construction of a temporary lift station.  The details would need to be worked out if this 
concept plan moves forward. 

 
Association: An association will be required as part of the single family detached villa lots for 

maintenance of the yards, snow removal etc. These documents would be required to be 
submitted with the preliminary/final plat submittal. 

 
Mailboxes: The applicant will be required to place clusters of mailboxes throughout the development as 

required by the post office. Individual mailboxes are no longer allowed in new residential 
developments per the post office.  

 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
 
After review and discussion by the members of the City Council, and if the City Council would like, a motion in 
support of or not in support of, the concept plan can be considered. Conditions or changes to the concept plan 
could also be included in the motion.  
  
If you have any questions relating to the concept plan prior to the City Council meeting, please feel free to 
contact me at:  jandersonmdg@gmail.com or call direct at 952-855-4596. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
 
 
 
 
John Anderson, Associate 
Consulting Planner, City of Mayer 

 
 

 
  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map 
Exhibit B - Concept Plan With Proposed Changes 
 

110



Page 4 

Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map  
 

111



Page 5 

Exhibit B - Concept Plan With Proposed Changes 
 

 

112



113



114

Owner
Callout
Future North/South TH 25 Bypass

Owner
Callout
Future Collector Street

Owner
Callout
Future local street

Owner
Line

Owner
Line

Owner
Polygon

Owner
Polygon

Owner
Callout
Change to High Density 

Owner
Polygon

Owner
Callout
Change to Low Density

Owner
Polygonal Line

Owner
Polygonal Line

Owner
Polygonal Line

Owner
Line

Owner
Callout
Change to Medium Density 



CITY OF MAYER 
REGULAR MEETING – PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, JULY 10 , 2018 @ 6:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Those present were Park Commissioners, Troy Congdon, Dan Pohl, Alisa Johnson, Mike Wegner, 
and Elizabeth Butterfield. Also present was City Administrator, Margaret McCallum and Public 
Works Kyle Kuntz.  
 
Absent: None. 
 
Also present: Tice Stieve-McPadden    
 

2. Approve Agenda 
 
Congdon moved to adopt the agenda. Johnson seconded. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

3. Minutes  
A. June 12, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

 
 Congdon moved to approve the June 12, 2018 meeting minutes. Pohl seconded. Motion 
 passed 5-0. 
 

4. Business 
A. Capital Improvement Plan Discussion – 2019 

 
 The Park Commission reviewed and discussed their 5 year Capital Improvement Plan.  
 
 One item of discussion was adding fencing for the softball fields. There was much discussion on 
 the placement of the fences and the regulation sizes for different softball leagues. Concern was 
 expressed that the fields possibly weren’t being used to their potential because fences were not 
 in place. The consensus of the commission was to look into the installation of an 8 foot 
 permanent fence around the back of the field this year in 2018. There was discussion that the 
 fencing was budgeted for in the past and therefore the fencing would be paid for out of the 
 reserve funds.  
 

115



 There was discussion on a splash pad in 2020.  
 
 There was discussion on West Ridge Parking and pulling past plans and cost estimates to 
 determine the feasibility in 2019.  
  
 The Commission asked staff for additional information on the code requirements for surfacing 
 of parking lots.  
 
 Kuntz suggested replacing the hoops at Bluejay Park in 2019. 
 
 The Commission discussed revisiting the park shelter at Old School House Park. Pohl asked 
 about downsizing the project to reduce the cost.  
 
 The Commission talked about the need to have bathrooms at Old School House Park and 
 different scenarios in which to get bathrooms available.  
 

B. Archery Range – Council Update 
 
 McCallum explained that the Park Commission recommended to Council that the location of the 
 archery range be at Old School House Park. She stated that at the June 25, 2018 City Council 
 meeting, the Council recommended that the Park Commission revisit the location determination 
 due to safety concerns.   
 
 The Commission discussed having the range next to the current compost site location. They 
 discussed improvements to the site that would have to occur such as movement of fencing, 
 parking, etc.  
 
 The Commission agreed to look into this location more intensely as a location option. They 
 asked staff to look into details related to the area needed for the range and parking standards.  
 

5. Staff Updates/Comments 
A. Ice Skating Rink – McCallum informed that the Council approved the location of the ice 

skating rink and approved staff looking into costs related to grading and creating the ice rink 
at Old School House Park.  

  
B. West Ridge Park – 2018 Amenities – McCallum informed that the Council approved the cost 

for play equipment and installation of that equipment for West Ridge Park in the amount of 
$40,753.00.  

  
C. Concrete Curbing – Old School House Park – McCallum stated that this would be going to 

the Council for approval at their July 23, 2018 meeting.  
 

116



D. T-Shirts 
 McCallum provided the Commission with shirts with the City logo.   

 
6. Commissioner Reports/Comments 

Johnson stated that the Gaga Pit looks great and is getting used a lot. Johnson asked about a 
potential garbage can being located by the amenity.  
 
Wegner asked about the space by the coffee shop on Highway 25 and if the city would be 
interested in reaching out to the property owner to have a small park in that location.  
 

7. Adjournment 
 
 The Commission moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:39 p.m. Motion passed 5-0.  

117



City of Mayer 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 12, 2018 

 
Commission Members Present: Chairperson Tom Stifter, and Commissioners Les Hahn, Patty 
Lanting, Rod Maetzold, Don Wachholz and Barney Johnson. 
 
Commission Members Absent: Council Liaison Erick Boder. 
 
Others Present:  Joel Vinkemeier, Francis Condon, Richard Cohrs and one other gentlemen who 
was not identified. 
 
Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC 
             
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
Meeting called to order at 6:30 PM by Chairperson Stifter. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA. 
A motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Hahn and seconded by 
Commissioner Wachholz.  Motion carried 6/0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
A motion to approve the April 3, 2018 Planning Commission minutes was made by 
Commissioner Maetzold and seconded by Commissioner Lanting. Motion carried 6/0. 
 
CONCEPT PLAN DISCUSSION ON 80 ACRES LOCATED AT 14120 COUNTY ROAD 
30 IN WACONIA TOWNSHIP DIRECTLY EAST OF THE SHIMMCOR INDUSTRIAL 
PARK. 
At 6:32 PM Planning Consultant Anderson presented the concept plan. He stated there are two 
proposed access points to the project, one across a city owned property in the Shimmcor 
Industrial park and one located in the southeast corner of the property on County Road 30. He 
stated the site is just under 80 acres and 123 lots and 35 acres of industrial land were proposed. 
He stated the proposed lots are considered villa lots and detached townhome lots and do not meet 
the standards of the single family residential zoning district and therefore a planned unit 
development would be needed. He stated the property is located in Waconia Township and would 
need to be annexed to the City but that it is part of a orderly annexation agreement and therefore 
the annexation process is spelled out. Planning Consultant Anderson then stated that a couple of 
lots on the north side of the project do not have frontage on a public street and that all lots will be 
required to front a public street. He also stated that per the current plan, the city would need to 
swap or deed a 60 foot wide right of way corridor to the developer for the access to Shimmcor 
Street and that because of that he suggested the land directly east of this site is guided for 
industrial rather than residential. 
 
Francis Condon, the applicant, then spoke and stated that the regional trail is a draw for 
residential properties and people like to be located next to the trail. He further stated that the main 
access would be from County Road 30 and would be installed right away along with the access to 
Shimmcor Street. He stated they were originally looking at doing about seventy-five percent of 
the property as residential but after discussions with staff it was scaled back to about fifty percent. 
He stated there is a wetland banking easement over the wetland which is located on the upper 

118



west side of the property and that would be a great amenity for residential properties and allow 
for private back yards. He also stated they are bringing this in front of the city now so they can 
get it included in the comprehensive plan update. 
 
Commissioner Don Wachholz asked if a traffic study was completed regarding traffic coming 
back through Shimmcor Street. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated that as part of the comprehensive plan update, that the City 
Engineer did a traffic study of the entire City and future growth area and that this area was 
included. 
 
Commissioner Hahn asked about the age of the potential buyer's of the residential lots. 
 
Francis Condon stated that it could be varied and that some of the lots may end up larger. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated that this type of residential product is becoming more 
popular across the twin cities area and that typically the people buying it are looking for 
maintenance free single family living and that similar product types are geared towards the empty 
nester retirement age but that a lot of the younger millennial age group is also starting to buy into 
this product type. 
 
Commissioner Hahn stated that if the majority of the residents end up being older then there will 
not be as many traffic trips and a lot of the trips that are generated will be at different time of day 
than the typical working person.  
 
Francis Condon stated that there may be 2-3 phases in the residential portion of the project and 
that both access points are planned on going in right away. 
 
Commissioner Hahn asked about the timing of the project. 
 
Francis Condon stated he was not sure but that he expected it to move forward in a timely 
manner. 
 
Commissioner Maetzold did state the City had a concept plan for the new fire station to be 
located on the city property directly west of the site and the majority of the site was being used in 
the concept. He stated that it would affect the layout if the city deeded or swapped the 60 acres 
for the access road with the developer. 
 
Francis Condon stated that they could talk to the property to the south and see if the road could be 
shifted that way or they could talk with Rich Cohrs about a 60 foot strip of land he owns south of 
there adjacent to the water tower for an alternative access to Shimmcor Street. 
 
Rich Cohrs stated that industrial land is not selling since he has developed lots in the Shimmcor 
Industrial Park and that he feels this property should be guided for all residential. 
 
Commission Hahn asked about how many bedrooms these proposed units have. 
 
Francis Condon stated 2-3 and maybe room for a lot. He also stated that a final builder/developer 
has not been picked at this time 
 

119



Commissioner Johnson made a motion to support the concept plan and change the north have of 
the property to low density and guide the adjacent property to the east for high density. Seconded 
by Commissioner Hahn.  Motion carried 6/0. 
 
UPDATE ON THE 2018 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE. 
At 7:34 PM Planning Consultant Anderson presented the future land use section of the draft 
Chapter 2 Land Use of the 2040 City of Mayer comprehensive plan update.  
 
Commissioner Hahn stated that he felt the two residential properties north of the creek on the 
west side of State Trunk Highway 25 should be guided for low density residential on the future 
land use map. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated that he did change property on the west side of State Trunk 
Highway 25 further south to low density but did not change this area. He stated that by changing 
this to low density it would not fit in to guiding the rest of this area commercial for long term 
development. He also stated that this is just the guide for future land use and not a zoning map so 
nothing changes on this property until they decide to request annexation. 
 
Commissioner Hahn made a motion to change the future land use of the two residential properties 
in question to low density residential. 
 
After further discussion Commissioner Hahn rescinded his motion. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson finished his presentation of the future land use section. 
 
NEXT MEETING. 
Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, August 7, 2018.  
 
COMMISSIONERS REPORT. 
None. 
 
ADJOUNRNMENT. 
A motion was made by Commissioner Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Hahn to adjourn 
the meeting at 8:38 PM.  Motion carried 6/0. 

120


	Packet 1
	0 Agenda 7.23.18 City Council Meeting Agenda
	1 Council Meeting 070918
	APPROVE AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	OTHER BUSINESS
	ADJOURN

	2 Work Session 070918
	3 Payables_July 23
	4 Week 3 - July
	5 Council Monthly Fire Report (9)
	FROM:  MAYER FIRE DEPARTMENT, ROD MAETZOLD – FIRE CHIEF
	TOWNSHIP CALLS:
	DATE         TIME TWP  DESCRIPTION/ADDRESS    MAN HOURS
	CITY OF MAYER CALLS:
	FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAININGS/ACTIVITIES FOR MONTH ENDING 06/30/18

	6 2018 June
	6 2017 - June
	6 2018 Q2
	6 Activity Description by Class (19)
	7 July PW Activities Sheet (2018)
	8 Project Update 7-16-18
	9 2019 County Assessor Agreement

	11.1 Memo - Cleaning Contract
	11.1 City of Mayer (1)
	12 Memo - Tower
	12 Tower
	12 412783_OLL_072400_7_6_2015_19_36_32
	12 412783_OLLAMD01_081208_7_6_2015_19_36_32
	13 CC MEMO Vinkemeier Concept Plan 7-16-18
	13 Concept Changes 6-29-18
	13 FLU Map Changes
	15 July 10 2018 Park Minutes
	16 PC Minutes 7-12-18
	City of Mayer
	Planning Commission
	Meeting Minutes
	Thursday, July 12, 2018
	Commission Members Present: Chairperson Tom Stifter, and Commissioners Les Hahn, Patty Lanting, Rod Maetzold, Don Wachholz and Barney Johnson.
	Commission Members Absent: Council Liaison Erick Boder.
	Others Present:  Joel Vinkemeier, Francis Condon, Richard Cohrs and one other gentlemen who was not identified.
	Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC
	CALL MEETING TO ORDER.
	Meeting called to order at 6:30 PM by Chairperson Stifter.
	ADOPT AGENDA.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES.
	At 7:34 PM Planning Consultant Anderson presented the future land use section of the draft Chapter 2 Land Use of the 2040 City of Mayer comprehensive plan update.
	Commissioner Hahn stated that he felt the two residential properties north of the creek on the west side of State Trunk Highway 25 should be guided for low density residential on the future land use map.
	Planning Consultant Anderson stated that he did change property on the west side of State Trunk Highway 25 further south to low density but did not change this area. He stated that by changing this to low density it would not fit in to guiding the res...
	Commissioner Hahn made a motion to change the future land use of the two residential properties in question to low density residential.
	After further discussion Commissioner Hahn rescinded his motion.
	Planning Consultant Anderson finished his presentation of the future land use section.
	NEXT MEETING.
	Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, August 7, 2018.
	COMMISSIONERS REPORT.
	ADJOUNRNMENT.




